SYNOPSIS OF THE THESIS

Factors Influencing Aspirants Decision to Study

Abroad

Doctoral Thesis Submitted

In partial fulfilment of the requirements for the award of the degree of

DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY

In

MANAGEMENT

By

Khushbu Agarwal ID No.15JU11400004

Under the Supervision of

Dr. P K Banerjee Dr. Rumna Bhattacharyya

Co supervisor Supervisor

Prof. & Head Professor

ISM-Ranchi ICFAI University Jharkhand

Ranchi, India Ranchi, India



ICFAI UNIVERSITY JHARKHAND

RANCHI

June,2022

Contents

1.	Introduction	3
2.	Research Relevance and Motivation	6
3.	Scope of the study	7
4.	Review of Literature	7
5.	Research Gap	25
6.	Research Objective	26
7.	Research Hypothesis	26
8.	Research Methodology	28
9.	Research Data Analysis	31
10.	. Conclusions & Recommendations	32
11.	Limitations of the Research	32
12.	Recommendations for future work	37
13.	Bibliography	41

1. Introduction

Developing countries and developed ones have primary objective of rapid economic development. Human beings play an important role in this development. Gerald M, Meir has appropriately remarked: "The key to development is human being and his (her) abilities, attitudes, and values must be changed in order to accelerate the development process" (Meir, G.M., 1975). Education plays a significant role in this process. Theoretical as well as empirical researches have validated the fact that investment of a country in human capital formation plays a fundamental role in cultivating the productivity and efficiency of human beings, and based on them various factors that complement and supplement the production process. This investment in human capital, especially through the medium of education has attracted the more attention of economists across the world. A well-planned education system contributes significantly to the growth and economic development of a country (Agrawal, P., 1982).

Education influences economic development of a country directly as well as indirectly. The direct impact is through improving productivity, employment, living standard, division of labour, mobility of labour, and other factors. Similarly, the indirect impact is through savings, limiting family size, coaching right attitudes and skills, and by eliminating obstacles in social change and progress (Goel S.C. 1975).

The higher education trend underwent with major advancement over the years, mainly in terms of student enrolment and growing of number of educational institutions. Presently, aligning with this advancement and with upgrading fashion, higher education institutions are facing more competitive and challenging environment. To cope up with trend, educational institutions must have understanding about the target market to attract, keep, and increase student's enrolment. Institutions require effective marketing strategies which helps them in

providing universally accepted education with high service quality, and make students capable enough to shape their career with enhancing capability to sell their skills.

Globalization and Higher Education

Abroad education has become an important industry with growing concept of international education. As per the results of a 'Higher Education special survey: Higher education in abroad is already become a global business in many countries such as U.S., Canada and Australia international students contribute with huge sums to the country's economy and generate a substantive amount of work as well as employment for the country's people.

On the average, participation of student in overseas education is increasing at about two percent per year, (International Finance Corporation (IFC)). More than two million students around the world study outside their home country and this number is predicted to rise to around eight million by 2025 (Altbach, 2004; SvensktNäringsliv, 2007). The Institute of International Education (IIE) in 2014 reported that the growth rate of abroad education has increased to three percent in the most recent year. In other words: international education is an industry that is important to take into consideration.

Since international education has become an important industry it is vital to treat it as such. International students do not only contribute with tuition fees they also live in the foreign country and spend money there on accommodation, food and others (Mazzarol, 1998). There are of course other reasons than foreign students being an income source for countries and universities to be interested in being a part of the international education industry.

With globalization, Universities are multiplying their reach beyond geographical borders. The European, Australian and American Universities are setting up branch campuses in Singapore, India, China and the Gulf countries. Similarly, many of them are collaborating

with other local institutions in abroad to teach their courses under their brand name without getting in direct business involvement.

Since abroad education has become an important industry to boost nation's economy, it is essential to treat it as such. Countries as well as institutions must have to think about education industry in the same way as they think about other industries. With that concept comes marketing at prime. Governments and universities need to understand and work on activities to attract international students. They must offer international students exactly what they are looking for and also communicate and market it. Students involve in international higher education in searching of certain benefits, but what are those benefits? With growing demand of abroad higher education, the competition within the education industry has also becoming intense. Therefore, the institutions need to classify and maintain their competitive advantages with working on positioning themselves. International education is an interesting research field not only because it is contributing huge to the institution and national economy but also because relatively very little has been written on the marketing perspectives of education within international markets (Mazzarol, 1998).

India Students Studying Abroad

As per data of the year 2012, more than 189 thousand Indian students were enrolled in higher education institutions abroad. This population accounts for 4.7% of the total internationally mobile students worldwide and which is the world's second largest source of foreign students after China (17.3%).

Indian foreign students are dispersed over 50 countries of the world. Out of the 189, 472 Indian foreign students in 2012, more than 85% students were concentrated in six countries: the United States (51%), United Kingdom (16%), Australia (6%), Canada (4%), United Arab

Emirates (4%) and New Zealand (4%).

Similarly in 2014, over 181 thousand Indian students were enrolled in higher education institutions abroad. However, as per the Indian Student mobility report 2016, the growth of Indian students studying abroad went up faster than China's last year. In 2015, the number of students from India going abroad came up to 360,000, recording a growth of 17.8 percent. In 2017, China and India, lead the way of students heading overseas. According to data reported by UNESCO, the total number of Chinese students headed overseas in 2017 was 928,000, while Indian students headed out 332,000. In 2020, Chinese and Indian students made up 53% of all international students in the United States (Open Doors, 2020). China sent 993,367 students overseas in 2020, while India sent out 375,055 students.

This surge was attributed to the fact that the trend of overseas higher education among the Indian students is increasing day by day. Nearly 85 percent of internationally mobile Indian students head for the U.S., U.K., Australia, Canada and New Zealand, and student numbers to these countries have generally seen an increase, except in the U.K. The U.K. is the only top study destination that has seen a downturn, due to its tightening immigration policies, which has made it more difficult for overseas students to secure visas, particularly those from India. The number of Indian students choosing the U.S. as their study destination saw a growth of nearly 30 percent.

2. Research Relevance and Motivation

The dominant flow of international students is from developing countries to Western developed countries. In particular, out of every ten tertiary students studying overseas, four are Asians (Wang, 2007), and India is among the second largest sourcing countries for international students, this trend will become more significant in the near future (Liu, Rhoads,

Many of the studies have examined to identify benefits and challenges of overseas education and defines that those students who have studied abroad to be more attractive because these students already have an exposure towards international cultures and can effectively communicate with people from other countries because of their elevated cultural awareness (Laggett, 2011).

Though, there are huge opportunities of abroad higher education, based on the literature survey conducted by the researcher across the world. It is found that those findings may be limited in Indian context because most research work published was carried out by Chinese/Foreign researchers rather than Indian researchers who may not have deeper insights into domestic students' needs and wants and cultural differences. In order to better understand which factors may influence Jharkhand students' choice decision towards abroad study, it is necessary to explore all the factors which may exert influence on Indian students' choice decision of studying abroad. By understanding the factors influencing student's decision, as well as benefits students looking for. It is possible to work on supplying just those factors with highlighting benefits mostly on same aspects in the marketing campaigns. The knowledge regarding the same topic will make them able to formulate improved marketing strategies in order to attract Indian (Jharkhand) students.

3. Scope of the study

The study is limited to identifying the factors influencing Jharkhand selected cities students moving abroad for their higher education. The findings of this study will be of interest to the target audience such as: students of Jharkhand who interest to study overseas, foreign institutions, overseas consultancies, coaching centres, also domestic universities and colleges.

The analysis of this research will yield practical recommendations which will be both easily understandable and easily put into action. The conclusion derived from the study is expected to assist local universities as well as global universities in understanding about how to redesign their marketing policies in attracting Indian students in general as well as from selected cities of Jharkhand, in particular.

4. Review of Literature

The first section of the literature review highlights the concepts internationalization and globalization in higher education. The next section expresses the theoretical literature in regard to the complexity in students' decisions pertaining to overseas study. Additionally various popular choices and decision-making models related to international education will be discussed. The review of literature then looks into the push-pull theory, drawing the theoretical and conceptual discussion in international student research. A detailed review of empirical literature studies was conducted to examine the key influencing factors of international students' choices decision. The identification of influencing factors includes the motivational factors related to the decision to study abroad, influencing factors for higher education choices as well as study destination choices. The review of past literature also aims at exploring the influence from the different sources of information such as parents, siblings, former participants, relatives and friends, study abroad advisor and recommendations from others. Evaluation of gender differences in students' choices and decision-making follows next. The review of the literature helps to forms the pathway required to the conceptualisation of the model for this study in the final section of this chapter.

2.17 Brief Summary of Research Work

Table 2.17. 1 Brief Summary of Research Work

Literature	Literature	Author/s	Gist of Points gained	Linkage to own research
Reviewed	Type			
(Title of the paper,	(Research			
	Paper,			
article, etc. along with	Review			
the source, i.e., the	Paper,			
name of the Journal,	Chapter of			
Magazine, Book, etc.)	a Book,			
	etc.)			
1. Title: Factors	Master in	Suh Li Phang,	The research argues that economic and social forces	This research paper helped to identify
influencing	Communi	Jan 2013	within the home country 'push' students abroad while	opportunities of overseas education,
international students'	cation		the students' decision to select a study destination	It also focuses on what benefits are
study destination	Thesis		depend on various 'pull' factors.	associated with international educations that
decision abroad	Report		Three groups of factors have been identified to	are important for students.
	No.		influence international students' decision on study	
Source: University of	2012:087		destination. These include communication (quality:	
Gothenburg Department	ISSN:		digital, internet, google), location (study destination's	
of Applied Information	1651-		attractiveness: brand, course, facilities,) and social	
Technology	4769		factors (social network: family, friends, etc.)	
Gothenburg, Sweden,			The data analysis demonstrates that it is important to	

		understand the motivations and reasons international	
		students choose certain programs/ courses at a specific	
		university.	
		The major contribution of this study is to highlight the	
		significance of the category communication factors	
		which has an important influence on international	
		students' decision of study destination.	
2. Title: Students' Article	Dan Liu ¹ W. John	This paper uses the theoretical framework of 'habitus'	This study helped to analyze comparative
Decision-Making	Morgan ^{2,3,4}	defined as 'a habitual or typical condi- tion, state or	students' behavior in context to Jharkhand
About Postgraduate		appearance, particularly of the body', focused on the	and also helped to know about how their
Education at G	15 Dec. 2015	role of cultural and familial habitus in student choice	socio, economic, and cultural factors affects
University in China:		of higher education.	their decision-making.
The Main Factors and		A mixed-method approach was adopted. The first	
the Role of Family and		question was addressed through an exploratory	
of Teachers		questionnaire to explore students' main reasons for	
		making choices about program and institution for PG	
		study. The second question was addressed using a	
		semi-structured interview, which considered the	
		influences of family background and teachers on	
		student decision-making	
		The findings show that both families and teachers play	

			important roles in shaping students' decision-making	
			about PG education.	
3. Title:	Research	Mercy	The purpose of this paper is to uncover the extent to	A comparative study helped to understand
Comparative analysis	Paper	Mpinganjira, 14	which different factors influence this decision	the perception of students towards abroad
of factors influencing		Jul 2009	generally and specifically among different groups of	studies at domestic level as well as at
the decision to study			students as well as implications of these factors on the	international level.
abroad			marketing of higher education services in South	The study will help to understand the true
			Africa.	psychology of the students.
			Online survey methodology with structured	
Source:			questionnaire looking at different facets relating to	
University of			international study was the main instrument used to	
Johannesburg,			collect the data. In order to establish possible factors	
Department of			that influence the decision to study abroad, the study	
Marketing			made use of focus group discussions, in- depth	
Management, Bunting			interviews and an examination of literature. The focus	
Road Campus, P. O			group discussions were done with two groups of	
Box 524, Auckland			international students namely undergraduates and	
Park, Johannesburg. E-			postgraduates, where The questionnaire was first pre-	
mail:			tested on 15 students before coming up with the final	
mmpinganjira@uj.ac.za			version to ensure that the wording used was clear and	
. Tel.: +27 11 559 1421.			understandable as well as to estimate the time involved	

Fax: +27 11726 2811.			in filling the questionnaire.	
			The findings show that although supply related	
			conditions in home country influence the decision to	
			study abroad, the most important factors are those	
			related to the conditions abroad. Students irrespective	
			of group, mainly look to opportunities to enhance their	
			career prospects through acquiring high quality	
			education with qualifications that are recognized	
			worldwide.	
			The findings are useful to foreign countries and	
			institutions represented as international study	
			destinations as well as other service providers in the	
			industry as source to better refine their strategies so as	
			to ensure that their limited resources are optimally	
			located in efforts that are likely to lead to better	
			recruitment efforts of international students.	
4. Title:	Journal	S. Wilkins, and	The purpose of this exploratory study is to investigate	This study helped to discover the attitudes
International student		J. Huisman,	the determinants of destination choice of international	of Jharkhand students toward international
destination choice: the			students who decided to study at a university in the	universities and colleges.
influence of home		2011	UK and examine their attitudes toward international	
campus experience on			branch campuses given their experiences of living and	

the decision to		studying in the UK	
consider branch		The study considers the role of marketing in helping	
campuses.		higher education institutions (HEIs) in Western	
		countries counter the potential threat of the new	
		international branch campuses and also provides a test	
Source: Journal of		of the universally accepted push-pull model of	
Marketing for Higher		international student destination choice	
Education, 21 (1). pp.		The survey results and analyses suggest that overseas	
61-83. ISSN 0884-1241		campuses could pose a considerable threat to home	
		campuses in the competition for international students	
		in the future.	
5. Title: A Qualitative Journal	AndrianiKusumaw	As competition increases in the higher education	This study helped in determining what
Study of the Factors	ati	institution (HEI) sectors, public and private	important factor students consider when
Influencing Student		universities increasingly view students as consumers	they choose universities for further study in
Choice: The Case of	2013	and try to market their institution intensively. These	higher education.
Public University in		changes indicate that universities have to compete for	
Indonesia		students in the recruitment markets.	
Source:		Qualitative research through semi-structured	
Business		interviews was carried out with 48 first-year	
Administration		undergraduate students.	
Department, Faculty of		The results indicated that students considered 5 most	

Administrative Science,			criteria such as : cost, reputation, proximity, job	
University of			prospect and parents for selecting an Indonesian public	
Brawijaya, Malang of			university.	
Indonesia			The other common criteria indicated are job prospect,	
			parents and quality.	
6. Title: Study Abroad	Journal	HormozMovassagh	Job markets/employers in many countries recognize	The study helped to understand the
Decisions:		i	study abroad as a differentiating factor in the	opportunities and challenges of overseas
Determinants &		&	recruitment process.	education
Perceived		FahriUnsal	Global firms find those students who have studied	
Consequences		(Ithaca College)	abroad to be more attractive because these applicants	
			already have had exposure to international cultures and	
		KenanGöçerBeyke	can effectively communicate with people from other	
Source:		nt University	countries because of their elevated cultural awareness	
Journal of Higher			Positive outcomes associated with studying abroad,	
Education Theory and		2014	they discovered, included experiencing a new culture,	
Practice vol. 14(1) 2014			improvement of language skills, opportunity to grow	
			and develop as a person, new career opportunities,	
			exposure to an interesting or fun experience & helped	
			students become more globally minded. Negative	
			outcomes stated by students included homesickness	
			and delay or disruption of academic progress. Cost and	

			availability of financial aid were the biggest concerns.	
			Findings identified intellectual and personal growth,	
			career enhancement potential, ability to graduate on	
			time, cost, and financial aid availability as the most	
			important "program-related" considerations, and	
			exposure to other cultures and desire to live	
			independently as key "non-program" factors	
			Finding from Factor analysis confirmed "Cultural	
			Understanding and Personal Growth" and "Cultural	
			Tolerance" as the top decision criteria.	
7. Title: Factors	Ph.D.	Adonis	The purpose was to determine and study the factors	The study helped to suggest changes to the
influencing	Theses	Americanos	influencing international students" decisions in	current marketing policies, strategies, and
international			choosing a Cyprus HEI, namely Americanos College	practices of foreign universities, in order to
students' decisions in		2011	(AC)	increase their international student
choosing a			Based on the findings, the primary research aim was to	population
Cyprus Higher			suggest changes to the current recruitment and	
Education Institution:			marketing policies and practices of AC, in order to	
Implications for			increase AC"s international student population	
recruitment and			The key findings of this research suggest that the first	
marketing			reason international students choose Cyprus's HEIs is	
			the relatively low tuition fees (TF) charged as	

Source:		compared to other more well-known destinations, easy	
Middlesex University		admissions and immigration procedures.	
Research Repository		The findings also clearly show that the HEIs" agents	
An open access		are the most influential persons in the decision-making	
repository of Middlesex		process of international students prior to their coming	
University research		to Cyprus.	
		The role of current students and alumni in the	
		recruitment of students is very important and this is	
		directly linked with a strong	
		(WOM) effect.	
8.Title:	Xuemei Liu ¹ ,	The specific aim of this study is to compare overseas-	This study helped to employs quantitative
Comparing Research		based research and China- based research regarding	design to gain an insight into the factors that
on Chinese Students	2	factors that may influence Chinese students" decisions	are influencing Jharkhand's students
Study Abroad	Frank Elston ² ,	on their overseas studies.	decision to study abroad.
Decision-making:	and	A major contribution of this study is identified some	
China-based versus	Peng Zhou ³	similarities as well as significant differences. China-	
Overseas-based		based research identified factors grounded in students	
Perspectives	November,	such as social influences, perceived high educational	
Source: Proceedings of	2013,	quality in destination countries and social-economic	
23rd International		pragmatism.	
Business Research		The findings from this study suggest host countries	

Conference 18 -		and their education institutions need to consider the	
Marriott Hotel,		importance of influencing factors for Chinese students	
Melbourne, Australia,		to study abroad from both the overseas-based research	
ISBN: 978-1-922069-		and the China-based research.	
36-8			
9. Title: a study on the	Dr.	This research paper investigates the factors that	The study helped to identify motivational
factors influencing	PoonamKakkad,	influence students' decision on studying abroad with a	and constraining factors that influence
students' decision to	Assistant Professor	focus on what benefits are associated with an	students' decision with regards to the same.
study abroad	Dr. T.P. Madhu	international education that are important for students.	
Source:	Nair, Principal	The study also investigates the barriers that students	
BVIMSR's Journal of	(Nirmala Memorial	perceive while making a decision about studying	
Management Research	Foundation College	overseas.	
	of Commerce and	The results of the survey showed that this market	
	Science, Mumbai)	under study, considers family members as the most	
	Vol. 7 Issue – 2:	trustworthy source of information for any matter	
	October: 2015	related to higher education in foreign universities.	
10. The Decision to Thesis	Lisa Källström	To investigate the factors that lay behind the taking	The study of the decision to study abroad
Study Abroad -What		part in the decision for an international education with	helped to identify opportunities of overseas
Benefits are the		focus on the most appealing benefits associated with	education, understanding on the factors that
Chinese Student	2009	an international education.	are more appealing among the students

Looking for?			A conclusive summary is developed up that lists the	while taking decisions.
			most important benefits associated with international	
			education.	The study also helped to investigate the
			The empirical study indicates that culture experience,	barriers that students perceive while making
Source:Kristianstad			improved English, the university's reputation and the	a decision about studying overseas.
University College			safe environment offering country are key benefits	
			influencing Chinese students to study abroad.	
11. Factors T	hesis	JinousKasravi	The study investigate barriers and outcomes of study	The study helped to employ the
Influencing the			abroad, with focus on students of color who have made	understanding on the barriers and outcomes
Decision to Study		Aug,2009	the decision to participate and the factors that are	of overseas education.
Abroad for Students			associated to influence their decision.	
of Color: Moving			This study focuses on two groups of students with the	
Beyond the Barriers			help of mixed methods approach. : The first group	
			consisted of undergraduate students of color who had	
Source: UNIVERSITY			recently been accepted to a study abroad program	
OF MINNESOTA			through the University of California, San Diego in	
			2008. The second group included all sophomores and	
			above, regardless of race, who had decided not to	
			apply for a study abroad program.	
			The study concludes that the personal and social	

factors were considered as the primary factors	
influencing the student's decision to study abroad.	
Finances and academics were the main barriers	
students in both groups faced in their decision.	

5. Research Gap

In order to better understand which factors may influence Indian students' choice decision towards overseas study particularly of Jharkhand students, it is necessary to explore all the factors which may exert influence on Indian students' choice of their studying abroad destinations

In context of Jharkhand the major gap identified is the **seat availability of desired course in India.** There has not been much research covering seat availability of desired course. so the availability of seats in desired course factor needs to be paid attention. Hence, this study tries to cover seat availability factor too.

It is also found that the findings of the studies highlighted in the literature survey, may be limited in Indian context because most of the research works published were carried out by foreign researchers rather than Indian researchers, who may not have deeper insights into domestic students' needs and wants and cultural differences.

Also from the literature survey it is found that India is the second largest international students sourcing countries. It should also be noted that most of the research on international students choice decision has been focused upon developed countries predominantly the US, Australia, UK, New Zealand, Italy and Canada; whereas very less research has been focused on Asian countries.

Very few research has been found on this topic in context of India. With the growing demand for higher education in India, there is need of more research attention to explore the Indian context. If we discuss about Jharkhand, very little importance has been given to tier II cities for this type of topic. Therefore this study considers tier II city like Ranchi, Jamshedpur, Dhanbad & Bokaro for this study.

6. Research Objective

The research objectives solidify the relationships between the research problem, questions and goals. To fulfil the research goals, it is essential to achieve the following research objectives:

- 1. To identify the factors influencing the students' choice decision to study abroad
- 2. To study the benefits that students look for while taking decisions to study abroad
- 3. To analyze the obstacles that disturb the students while taking decisions to study abroad
- 4. To investigate the relationship between influencing factors and Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad
- 5. To study the impact of influencing factors on students' choice decision to study abroad
- 6. To find out whether factors identified as influencing choice decision vary with demographic profile of the students

7. Research Hypothesis

The following hypotheses were formulated in the present study (hypotheses were formulated only for objectives 4, 5 and 6):

Objective 4: To investigate the relationship between influencing factors and Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad

H₀4: There is no relationship between the influencing factors (seat unavailability, cost benefit and personal development, career advancement, high social status, worldwide recognition) and Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₁4: There is relationship between the influencing factors (seat unavailability, cost benefit and personal development, career advancement, high social status, worldwide recognition) and Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

Objective 5:To study the impact of influencing factors on Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad

H₀5a: Seat unavailability does not impact the Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₁5a: Seat unavailability impact the Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₀5b: Cost benefit and personal development does not influence Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₁5b: Cost benefit and personal development influence Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₀5c:Career Advancement does not impact Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₁5c:Career Advancement impact Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₀5d:High Social Statusdoes not influence the Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₁5d:High Social Statusinfluences the Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₀5e: World Wide Recognition does not impact the Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

H₁5e: World Wide Recognition impact the Jharkhand students' choice decision to study abroad.

Objective 6: To find out whether factors identified as influencing choice decision vary with demographic profile of the students.

H₀6: There is no significant difference in the perception among Jharkhand students' on influencing factors (seat unavailability, cost benefit and personal development, career advancement, high social status, worldwide recognition) of choice decision to study abroad based on gender.

H₁6: There is significant difference in the perception among Jharkhand students' on influencing factors (seat unavailability, cost benefit and personal development, career advancement, high social status, worldwide recognition) of choice decision to study abroad based on gender.

These hypotheses may be verified or disproved by empirical evidence or by the results and findings of this study.

8. Research Methodology

The present study is based on the survey data collected for the study. The following statistical analysis is implemented in order to draw conclusion on the basis of empirical research findings. Descriptive as well as inferential statistics were used for the study purpose. Descriptive statistics were implemented in assessing the composition of the sample and inferential statistics were employed to make the inferences about the population.

The target population for the study is as follows:

- Higher secondary passed students taking NEET, and JEE Mains examinations for Medical & Engineering admission respectively.
- 2. Under graduation passed students who are taking TOEFL / IELTS preparation classes.
- 3. Studentsmaking queries at admission consultancies for overseas study based at selected cities of Jharkhand.

For getting diversified sample, the students were contacted at NEET Exam centre, JEE Mains exam centre, at the IELTS/TOEFL coaching centres and overseas admission consultancies of some of the major cities of Jharkhand such as: Ranchi, Jamshedpur, Dhanbad & Bokaro. For obtaining the required sample units for survey purpose, the help of higher secondary schools, overseas admission consultancies, and IELTS/TOEFL coaching centre has been taken. Further, random sampling technique was used for collecting the samples from the population. The respondents were randomized through lottery method to ensure that every respondent had an equal opportunity of getting included in the sample. Moreover, the normality check was performed to establish the worthiness of the data collected for doing parametric tests and the data was found to be normally distributed.

Table 3.10.1.1 Population and Sample size

CITY	TARGETED POPULATION SIZE
RANCHI	20000
JAMSHEDPUR	15000
BOKARO	10000
DHANBAD	10000

TOTAL	55000

Source: Compiled from database of colleges, coaching centres, and admission consultancies.

Total sample size considered for this study is 400, with 100 respondents from each of the selected cities of Jharkhand.

To calculate our sample size, we have used Slovin's formula. The formula is described as $n = N/\{1+N(e)2\}$

Here, n= sample size

N= total population

e= margin of error

The targeted population of Ranchi, Jamshedpur, Dhanbad&Bokaro is 20,000, 15000, 10,000, and 10,000 respectively. So total population (N) = 55,000 and we have taken 5% as margin of error (e).

So, we get sample size (n) as 400 after rounding off.

Looking into the population nature, it has been decided to go for 400 samples for the research purpose and settled with 400 samples. The primary data was collected from the selected 400 students from the selected selected cities of Jharkhand (Ranchi, Jamshedpur, Dhanbad&Bokaro) who were interested to go abroad for higher education. These four cities in Jharkhand were selected because 90-95% of the queries regarding higher education abroad were coming from there. It is evident that aspirants for higher education aboard are maximum

concentrated in the above mentioned four cities (Ranchi, Jamshedpur, Dhanbadh and Bokaro) of Jharkhand.

The survey questionnaire used in this study was adapted from questionnaires used in a previous study of Kasravi, 2009 and personally administered to respondents for proper responses. Questionnaire was used as it is economical, structured and appropriate to capture primary data to test the hypotheses formed and to answer the research questions. Questionnaire in English language was formulated with easy understandable words.

Pilot test is conducted among 40 students. However, only 32 respondents have answered the questionnaire. The result of this pilot-test is analyzed with purpose to draw conclusions concerning the design of the questions and if the questionnaire could give useful result. The questionnaire completion time per respondent is approximately 22 minutes.

Reliability test was done to find out the internal consistency and all the reliability coefficients was found out to be 0.7 or more which is considered to be good.

9. Research Data Analysis

Research hypothesis were tested using suitable statistical analysis tools with the help of SPSS (version 16). Different statistical tools used in this research study are - cronbach alpha, factor analysis, mean, standard deviation, pearson's correlation analysis, regression analysis, independent sample t-test, one way anova, and multicollinearity.

Bartlett's test of sphericity and the Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin (KMO) measure of sampling adequacy help to access the factorability of the data. We obtained KMO value as 0.919.

Factor analysis was used to identify the variables that were related to one another. The main functions of factor analysis were: (1) To reduce the number of variables and (2) To identify relationships among variables, that was to categorize variables.

The Chi-squared test was carried out to determine whether an association (or relationship) between two categorical variables. Pearson's product correlation was performed in order to identify whether there is any significant correlation between different independent variable and dependent variable of Indian student to study abroad. Regression analysis was done to determine impact of other factors. Analysis of variance or ANOVA is a statistical tool which assesses potential differences among means of two or more independent samples.

10. Conclusions& Recommendations

The study reveals the key factors influencing choice decision to study abroad. The survey suggests key factors driving for abroad education are, it is easier to get an admission in abroad as compare to home country where there is intense competition for limited seats in India. There are certainly far more students than there are seats available in India. The simplicity in getting admission in abroad has a positive effect on attracting Indian students to a country. Indian students aspiring for quality education in premier institutions are restricted by the opportunities available in India. Another fact is that studying in abroad is cheaper than home country. Another, students' decision to study abroad usually derives from their perception that abroad education is better than the home country educations. International experiences, while motivating to meet educational goals, are another common driving forces for students to opt for abroad education.

The study contributes to understand the complex nature of Indian students' college choice decision. Researchers have identified a relatively consistent set of factors that affects

students' choice decision, namely: Seat unavailability in home country, cost benefits and personal development, career advancement, culture understanding, and worldwide recognition. Based on the review of literature on internationalization, university choice and decision making models, consumer behaviour and buyer decision process, as well as by conducting an empirical study at four major cities of Jharkhand. This study intended to offer additional insights into the information gathering for the choice decision process of Indian students. The study derives that student choice decision has strong and positive relationship with seat unavailability in home country, cost benefit and personal development, career advancement, high social status, worldwide recognized qualification. The findings also suggest that factors identified choice decision has been varying with demographic profile of the student in most of the cases.

During the search for a potential study destination as well as institution choice, students may acquire important information from a third party, such as their parents, relatives, friends, overseas institutions representatives, educational agents, as well as internet searches. Similarly the study discovers the strong influence of parents, former participants, and friends studying abroad in affecting international students' decision-making. When it comes to deciding to study abroad, family income, worldwide recognized qualification, sponsorships, career opportunities, personal development, positive image and a safety at study destination are key attractions for international students. And also at the same time they want the experience associated international education as it helps to broaden the experiences as individuals.

On the basis of results derived from the study, following recommendations are given:

1. The survey suggests unavailability of seats in home country as major factor which pushes students to abroad. So creating more government colleges will be beneficial for the country as well as related stake holders.

- 2. This study contributed to identify the factors due to which students take decision to move towards abroad for their higher education. Hence, this study will help the Government and related stakeholders to understand the need of seat increment of desired course among Indian students within country.
- 3. As the new National Education Policy of India aims to switch the country from being a 'sender', to becoming a destination country for students in the region.(Ministry of Human Resource Development, Government of India, 2020). This study would help Governments and higher education institutions to re-design marketing strategies as well as to develop more diverse admission procedure with trimming down the admission formalities.
- 4. This study has contributed to identify the perceived benefits and barriers that Jharkhand students consider while making decision to study abroad. This would help in the formulation of marketing strategies to the local universities and colleges, as well as to the foreign universities.
- 5. The study directed that factors such as seeking qualification with worldwide recognition pushes and motivates the students to pursue their study from abroad. Hence, Indian Institutions and colleges should be accredited internationally and should recognized all over the world and can open many doors for student around the globe.
- 6. The study demonstrated that factors like fear of safety in host country, fear of travelling to new country. Interest in international education is related to concern for safety among students as well as their parents. In the current situation, addressing these need are more important in order to avert students from refraining from abroad study due to safety concerns. Hence, addressing these concerns for student safety is important for the students and their parents. This can be attained by maintaining open communication and transparency between students and education agents who are responsible for their admission in abroad and proactively addressing as well as educating students and their parents about safety concerns while studying abroad.

- 7. The study directed that factors such as program cost, lack of family support are the obstacles for student in making overseas education decision. Hence, International institutions should re-design their programs in such a way that it should be cost-effective and do not lengthen course for a long period. The time frame of course completion should be reasonable for students. Additionally, it is suggested that Global universities could often be worked out through scholarships, financial aid packaging in order to attract Indian students through advertising the availability of scholarships to prospective students abroad as per their nationality.
- 8. obtaining better and high quality education is one of the important benefit that students wishes to grab, because a sit helps them enhancing their career opportunities after their studies completion, and also helps to improve critical and analytical thinking skill. Hence, This led the researcher to give commendation that foreign institutions must re-structure their program that match with industry demand also help students to enhance their critical thinking and be more creative. International institutions must involve in systematic communication program that designed to aware students regarding the benefits of studying abroad with pointing-out the benefit of new career opportunities, as well as anexposure towards fun and interesting experiences.
- 9. A well-known brand name of an institution should be established in order to improve its market coverage in right time. A successful brand name of institution helps to develop professionally in competitive world. It act as most important factor that possible students consider in making decision for their higher education.
- 10. Collaboration with active alumni is one of the effective ways to connect with international students. (Choudaha R., 2013) Noted that prominent international alumni can serve as an effective resource for student marketing and recruitment activities. International alumni can also serve as excellent and reliable advisor to prospective

international students. With some means of social media, institutions can re-establish contact with their alumni and encourage them to participate in their international student recruitment process and activities.

11. Early outreach and marketing in high school and during college fairs and exhibitions in home country is another suggestion that could be given to the global institutions. Global universities should increase their participation in a number of educational fairs, which take place in the countries. Present the image that study abroad is an attainable and valuable experience for students of all academic disciplines. When students attend these college fairs in addition to have information related to admissions on the university or college, it is imperative that some information about study abroad be presented so that those students put once their thought towards abroad education also while deciding for admissions.

Additionally, global universities should contact Indian schools, colleges and universities in order to visit and give presentations about their higher education institution, and its programs of study. During these visits, institutions can also distribute its promotional leaflets and posters. Also, they could arrange meetings with the Directors and/or careers counsellors and describe the advantages of their students studying in their institutions.

It should also set up transfer agreements with some of these home country's college and

It should also set up transfer agreements with some of these home country's college and universities where their students would be transferred to the second or third year at foreign institution to gain international exposure.

12. Although recruiting agent in home country are biggest strength for foreign institutions to get international students. Many students have serious complaints about agents/representatives and express their dissatisfaction with the quality of the services they receive. The foreign institutions admissions department should verify the agent's credentials before authorising him/her to represent and recruit for their college.

13. As the ultimate objective of any marketing effort is to meet the needs and desire of customers, all players in the international higher education industry have a task to perform in guarantying that not only good promises are made to potential students but also that the country and its institutions are able to always deliver on those promises. Players in the industry, be it governments, individual institutions and staff working under them, need to understand that they are operating in the global market and their competitors are from all parts of the world. Provision of quality education need to be based on internationally accepted quality standards. Therefore, it is essential that factors that help supply to high reputation in terms of quality of education provided are investigated and addressed.

14. Limitations of the Research

There are numerous challenges that might come up during the study. Some of these will be known and understood or might be a result of intuitions.

- Data collection for the study went through several and difficult processes. Researchers faced lot of difficulties in collecting data. Firstly, making initial contact with students, and giving information for gaining access to the student data is quite difficult.
- Another possible limitation of this research is that data gathered in this research also
 includes data of those students who have already enrolled for an international
 education in abroad. The sample in this case is not limited to international students
 during their initial or first year of studies.
- Most of the respondents avoided giving any comments and suggestions of the openended question which is the last part of the questionnaire. Therefore, it was difficult to get in-depth information of what their preferences and needs.
- Additionally, it is difficult to get an access to information, sources regarding current

marketing practices used by overseas consultancies and foreign universities to encourage and attract Indian students to study abroad. Many consultancies, coaching centres, colleges, and schools are not willing to share the information about current marketing practices they are using which is required to carry out research.

- The research study is limited to only four cities of Jharkhand. Such as: Ranchi,
 Jamshedpur, Dhanbad, and Bokaro. Others cities of Jharkhand are not being studied.
 The findings of this study might not be applicable to Indian students in other
 geographical areas.
- The study consisted of respondents are quite homogenous. All respondents were students who are taking preparation class which lead to that only few differences could be found among the respondents.
- It was hard to get permission from the Directors of preparation classes to collect data from their centres, as some of the information extracted would reveal information that they would not like to share with anyone.
- The research study is limited to data collection over a period from July 2017 to December 2019.
- Impact of COVID-19 is not included in the study as data collection and analysis has already been done.
- Impact of Ukraine crisis not included in the study as data collection and analysis has already been done.

However, all sorts of precautions will be taken and along with interview method, a participatory and non-participatory observation method are to be used to study the behaviour, and factors that influencing students choice decision in an optimum possible effective manner.

15. Recommendations for future work

The reason behind this study is the decision to engage in an international education and is focused identifying factors influencing Indian student's decision to study abroad. For future research, the study puts forward a proposal for expansion of research scope, longitudinal study, and larger group sample sizes for comparative study as follows:

A proposal for future research to expand the area of study to include respondents from other areas outside Jharkhand state. A wider geographical area of investigation may be useful in evaluating the impact of different state characteristics on Indian students' choices and decision-making.

Factors identified is introduced in this study were from the homogenous population as planned. The population consisted of students who are taking preparation which lead to that only few differences could be found among the respondents. It would be interesting to conduct a similar study on a more heterogeneous population where probably more differences can be found among the respondents.

Future research may consider repeating this study by conducting longitudinal research to track the different stages of the decision-making of international students, particularly to track pre and post decision. Higher education usually takes place over a long period of time and international students' attitudes and experiences might change based on the different encounters they experience. The key benefit of a longitudinal study is the ability to examine the changing patterns (changes in behaviour) of students over time. It allows researchers to probe the underlying relationship between factors over a long period of time, thus making longitudinal research more accurate in exhibiting the causal effect of the relationship between variables.

The decision process that leads to the decision to take part in an international education is complex and extensive. This study only focuses on a few parts of that process and other interesting fields are left to study such as the effect of different external stimuli and the influence of different people involved in the process has on the actual decision. Theoretical Frame of Reference: Consumer Behaviour and the Buyer Decision Process, identifies many such interesting fields to study.

As after the completion of data collection and analysis, the COVID-19 has emerged. Though survey data had been already collected, it was not possible to include impact of COVID -19 on student decision to study abroad in this study. Hence, the study puts forward a proposal to study the impact of COVID-19 on student decision to study abroad.

As after the completion of data collection, analysis, and pre thesis presentation Ukraine crisis has emerged. Though survey data had been already collected, it was not possible to include impact of Ukraine Crisis on student decision to study abroad in this study. Hence, the study puts forward a proposal to study the impact of Ukraine Crisis on student decision to study abroad.

16.Bibliography

Books

- Andrade, M., & Evans, N. (2009). International Students: Strengthening a Critical Resource.
 Maryland:: R&L Education.
- 2. Athanasiou, T., Debas, H. T., & Darzi, A. (2010). Key topics in surgical research and methodology. Berlin: GER: Springer-Verlag.
- 3. Bhandari, R., & Blumenthal, P. (2011). *International students and global mobility in higher education, Vol* 7. New york, US: The International and Development Education Series.
- 4. Bryman, A., & Bell, E. (2011). *Business research methods, 3rd edn.* New York: Oxford University Press.
- 5. Burton, D. (2000). Questionnaire design, in Research Training for Social Scientist, (ed.) D. Burton,. London: SAGE, .
- Carlson`, J. S., Bum, B. B., Useem, J., & Yachimowicz, D. (1990). Study abroad. The
 experience of American undergraduates in Western Europe and the United States. New
 York,: NY: Council on International Education Exchange. (ERIC Document Reproduction
 Service No. ED340332).
- 7. Collis, J., & Hussey, R. (2003). Business research: A practical guide for undergraduate and postgraduate students', 2nd edn. New York: Palgrave Macmillan, New York.
- 8. Creswell, J. W. (2009). Research design: Qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods approaches (3rd ed.). Sage Publications, Inc.

- 9. De Wit, H. (2008). Changing dynamics in international student circulation: meanings, push and pull factors, trends, and data. Rotterdam, The Netherlands,: The dynamics of international student circulation in a global context, Sense Publishers, vol. Global perspectives on higher education.
- Denzin, N., & Lincoln, Y. (2000). Handbook of qualitative research, 2nd edn. California.:
 SAGE, Thousand Oaks,.
- 11. Dillman, D. (2000). *Mail and Internet surveys: The tailored design method, 2nd ed.* New York, NY: John Wiley and Sons.
- 12. Fink, A. (2003). The survey kit (2nd Ed.). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.
- 13. Fisher, C., Buglear, J., Lowry, D., Mutch, A., & Tansley, C. (2004). *Researching and writing a dissertation for business students, 1st. ed.* Harlow: Pearson Education Limited.
- 14. Flick, U. (2009). An Introduction to Qualitative Research. London: SAGE.
- 15. Foskett, Nicholas, H., & Foskett, R. (2006). *Postgraduate study in the UK: the international student's guide*. London: UK, Sage, 211pp. .
- 16. George, D., & Mallery, P. (2007). SPSS for Windows Step by Step: A Simple Guide and Reference 14.0 Update. Boston: Pearson Education, 7th Edition, .
- 17. George, D., & Mallery, P. (2003). SPSS for Windows step by step: A simple guide and reference. 11.0 update (4th ed.). Boston: Allyn & Bacon.
- 18. Gro"nroos, C. Service Management and Marketing: A Customer Relationship Management Approach, 2nd ed. New York: Wiley, New York, NY.
- 19. Hair, J F; Bush, R P; Ortinau, D J. (2006). Marketing research: within a changing information environment, 3rd edn. New York.: McGraw-Hill/Irwin,.
- 20. Hair, J. F., Bush, R. P., & Ortinau, D. (2006). *Marketing research: within a changing information environment, 3rd edn,*. New York: McGraw-Hill/Irwin.
- 21. Jenkins, C. (2001). Coming to America: Examining why International Students Choose to Pursuea Degree at Oklahoma State University. New York: ProQuest.
- 22. Jones, E., & Brown, S. (2007). *Internationalising higher education*,. Routledge, Abingdon, UK.

- 23. Knight, J. (2012). Concepts, rationales, and interpretives frameworks in the internationalization of higher education. In H. d. Darla K. Deardorff, *The SAGE Handbook of International Higher Education* (pp. 27-42). The SAGE Handbook of International Higher Education.
- 24. Kothari, C.R. & Garg, G. (2014). Research Methodology: Methods and Techniques (3rd edition). New Delhi: New Age International (P) Ltd.
- 25. Kumar, R. (2005). *Research methodology: A step-by-step guide for beginner*. Frenchs Forest, NSW.: Pearson Longman.
- 26. Lind, D. A., Marchal, W. G., & Wathen, S. A. (2006). *Basic Statistics for Business and Economics*, 5th Ed,. New York: McGraw Hill.
- 27. Malhotra, N. (2008). Essentials of marketing research: An applied orientation, 2nd edn.

 Pearson Prentice Hall.
- 28. Malhotra, N., Hall, J., Shaw, M., & Oppenheim, P. (2002). *Marketing research: An applied orientation*, 2nd edn,. Pearson Prentice Hall.
- 29. Malhotra, N. K., & Dash, S., (2011) Marketing Research, An Applied Orientation. 6th Edition, Pearson, India.
- 30. Maylor, H., & Blackmon, K. (2005). *Researching business and management*. New York, NY: Palgrave Macmillan.
- 31. McDaniel, C. F., & Gates, R. (2001). *Marketing Research essentials, 3rd Edition*. United States: thomson Learning, p: 185.
- 32. Miller, R. B., & Brewer, J. D. (2003). The A-Z of social research. London: SAGE, London.
- 33. Mitra, S. (2008). How To Save The World's Back Office of Forbes.
- 34. O'Leary, Z. (2004). The Essential Guide to Doing Research,. London: Sage, Chapter Three.
- 35. Pallant, J. (2007). SPSS Survival Manual. England: McGraw-Hill Education.
- 36. Patton, M. Q. (2002). *Qualitative research and evaluation methods, 3rd edn,*. California: SAGE, Thousand Oaks,.

- 37. Remenyi, D., William, B., Money, A., & Swartz, E. (1998). *Doing research in business and management An introduction to process and method.* London: Sage.
- 38. Sekaran, U. (2000). *Research methods for business A skill-building approach, 3rd edn.* New York, USA: John Wiley and sons.
- 39. Sekaran, U., & Bougie, R. (2010). Research methods for business: A skill building approach, 5th edn,. Great Britain: John Wiley & Sons.
- 40. Sidhu, R. K. (2006). *Universities and globalisation: To market, to market.* NJ, U.S.A: Mahwah, NJ, U.S.A.
- 41. Sidhu, R., Ho, K., & Yeoh, S. (2014). *Singapore: Building a Knowledge and Education Hub.*Netherlands: Springer Netherlands.
- 42. Strauss, A., & Corbin, J. (1990). Basics of qualitative research: Grounded theory procedures and techniques. Newbury Park, CA: SAGE.
- 43. Takeuchi, A. (2008). *Issues Related to Female Study-Abroad Returnees*. New York: ProQuest. .
- 44. Veal, A. J. (2005). *Business Research Methods: A Managerial Approach, 2nd edn.* Australia: Pearson Education .
- 45. Wagner, K., & Fard, P. (2009). Factors influencing Malaysian students' intention to study at a higher educational institution. Kuala Lumpur 2009: E-Leader,.
- 46. Zikmund, W. G., J, B. B., Carr, J. C., & Griffin, M. (2010). *Business research methods, 8th edn.* South Western Cengage Learning, Mason, OH.

Conference

 Middlehurst, R. (2003). 'The developing world of borderless higher education: markets, providers, quality assurance and qualifications. First Global Forum on International Quality Assurance, Accreditation and the Recognition of Qualifications (pp. 25-39). Paris: : UNESCO.

Journal Article

- Abdullahi, I., Kajberg, L., & Virkus, S. (2007). Internationalization of LIS education in Europe and North America. New Library World, Vol. 108 No. 1/2, 7-24.
- 2. Ahlburg, D. A. (2020). Covid-19 and UK universities. The Political Quarterly, 91(3), 649-654.
- 3. Ahmad, S., & Buchanan, F. (2015). Motivation factors in students decision to study at international branch campuses in Malaysia. *Studies in Higher Education*.
- 4. Aldemir, C., & Gulcan, Y. (2004). Student satisfaction in higher education: a Turkish case. Higher Educucation Management Policy, vol.16, no.2, 109-122.
- Alexander, L. R. (2012). Federal Financial Aid Options for Study Abroad: Funding Your Study Abroad Trip with Federal Financial Aid. . StudyAbroad.com.
- 6. Altbach, P. (1991). Impact and adjustment: Foreign students in comparative perspective. *The International Journal of Education and Educational Planning: Special Issues on Higher Education and the Flow of Foreign Student, vol.21, no.3,*, 305-323.
- 7. Altbach, P. (2002). Perspective on internationalizing higher education. *International Higher Education*, Vol. 27 No. 4, 6-8.
- 8. Altbach, P. (2004). Globalisation and the university: myths and realities in an unequal world. *Tertiary Education and Management, Vol. 10 No. 1*, 3-25.
- 9. Altbach, P. (2005). Globalization and the University: Myths and Realities in an Unequal World. *National Education Association, The NEA 2005 Almanac of Higher Education*, , 63-74.
- Altbach, P. and de Wit, H. (2020) Post Pandemic Outlook for HE is Bleakest for the Poorest. University World News, 4 April, 2020.

- 11. Altbach, P. G., Reisberg, L., & Rumbley, L. E. (2009). Trends in Global Higher Education: Tracking an Academic Revolution. MA: Center for International Higher Education, Boston College.
- 12. Altbach, P., & Knight, J. (2006). The Internationalization of Higher Education: Motivations and Realities. *The NEA 2006 Almanac of Higher Education*, , 27-36.
- 13. Altbach, Philip G.; Reisberg, Liz; Rumbley, Laura E.;. (2010). Tracking a Global Academic Revolution. *Change The Magazine of Higher Learning* 42(2), 30-39.
- 14. Altinay, L., & Paraskevas, A. (2008). *Planning research in hospitality and tourism*. Elsevier Linacre House, Oxford.
- 15. Ansary, A., Jayashree, S., & Malarvizhi, C. (2014). The effect of gender and nationality on service quality in Malaysian higher education. *The Journal of Developing Areas, vol.48, no.4,* , 97-118.
- 16. Aronsson, A. (1994). SPPS för Windows, En Introduktion. Lund: Studentlitteratur.
- 17. Baek, S. G., & Shin, J. H. (2008). Multilevel analysis of the effects of student and course characteristics on satisfaction in undergraduate liberal arts courses. *Asia Pacific Journal of Education*, vol.9, no.4, 475-486.
- 18. Baker, S., & Brown, B. (2007). of excellence: constructions of institutional prestige and reflections in the university choice process. *British Journal of Sociology of Education vol.28*, no.3, 377-391.
- 19. Bareham, J. R. (2004). Can consumers be predicted or are they unmanageable? *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management, Vol 16 No 3*, , 159-165.
- 20. Beerkens, E. (2013). 'Why university as we know it will be still here in 25 years', in H De Wit, F Hunter, LJohnson & H-G van Liempd (eds), Possible future the next 25 years of the internationalisation of higher education. *European Association for International Education* (EAIE), 44-7.
- 21. Bhati, A., & Anderson, R. (2012). Factors influencing Indian student's choice of overseas study destination. *Procedia Social and Behavioral Sciences* 46, 1706 1713.

- 22. Bhati, A.; Anderson, R. (2012). Factors Influencing Indian Student's Choice of Overseas Study Destination. *Procedia Social and Behavioral Sciences 46*.
- 23. Bianchi, C. (2013). Satisfiers and dissatisfiers for international students of higher education:

 An exploratory study in Australia. *Journal of Higher Education Policy and Management,*vol.35, no.4, , 396-409.
- 24. Bilkey, W. J., & Nes, E. (1982). Country-of-origin effects on product evaluations. *Journal of International Business Studies, http://dx.doi.org/10.1057/palgrave.jibs.8490539*, 89-99.
- 25. Binsardi, A., & Ekwulugo, F. (2003). International marketing of British education: Research on the students' perception and the UK market penetration. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning*, vol.21,no.5, 318-327.
- 26. Black, H. T., & Duhon, D. L. (2006). Assessing the Impact of Business Study Abroad Programs on Cultural Awareness and Personal Development. The Journal of Education for Business 81(3), 140-144.
- 27. Bodycott, P. (2009). Choosing a higher education study abroad destination. *Journal of Research in International Education* 8, 349-373.
- 28. Bodycott, P., & Lai, A. (2012). The Influence and Implications of Chinese Culture in the Decision to Undertake Cross-Border Higher Education. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, vol. 16, no. 3, 252-270.
- Bonnema, J., & Vander-Weldt, D. (2008). Information and source preference of a student market in higher education. *International Journal of Educational Management*, vol.22, no.4, 314-327.
- 30. Bourke, A. (2000). A model of the determinants of international trade in higher education. Service Industries Journal, vol. 20, no. 1, 110-38.
- 31. Bourn, D. (2011). From internationalisation to global perspectives. *Higher Education Research & Development, vol. 30, no. 5*, 559-71.
- 32. Brandenburg, U., Hudzik, J. K., Ota, H., & Robertson, S. (2013). From Innovation to Mainstream and Beyond: The Unfolding Story of Internationalisation in Higher Education.

 Possible future the next 25 years of the internationalisation of higher education, 63-78.

- 33. Briggs, S. (2006). An exploratory study of the factors influencing undergraduate student choice: the case of higher education in Scotland. *Studies in Higher Education*, vol.31, no. 6, 705-722.
- 34. Brown, J. H., & Oplatka, I. (2015). University choice: what do we know, what don't we know and what do we still need to find out? *International Journal of Educational Management* 29(3, 254-274.
- 35. Brown, R. M., & Mazzarol, T. W. (2009). The importance of institutional image to student satisfaction and loyalty within higher education. *Higher Education vol.58*, no.1, 81-95.
- 36. Brux, J. M., & Fry, B. (2009). Multicultural Students in Study Abroad: Their Interests, Their Issues, and Their Constraints. *Journal of Studies in International Education* 13(4).
- 37. Carrington, B; Francis, B; Hutchings, M; Skelton, C; Read, B; Hall, I. (2007). Does the gender of the teacher really matter? Seven-to eight-year-olds' accounts of their interactions with their teachers. *Educational Studies* 33(4).
- 38. Carter, D. F. (1999). The impact of institutional choice and environments on African American and white students' degree expectations. *Research in Higher Education*, vol.40, no.1, 17-41.
- 39. Ceja, M. (2006). Understanding the Role of Parents and Siblings as Information Sources in the College Choice Process of Chicana Students. *Journal of College Student Development* 47.1, , 87–104.
- 40. Chapman, D W. (1984). Teacher retention: The test of a modelTeacher retention: The test of a model. *American Educational Research Journal*, 21 (3), 645-658.
- 41. Chapman, D. W. (1981). A model of student college choice. *Journal of Higher Education*, vol.52, 490-505.
- 42. Chen, C. H., & Zimitat, C. (2006). Understanding Taiwanese students' decision making factors regarding Australian international higher education. *International Journal of Educational Management*, 20(2), 91-100.
- 43. Chen, L. H. (2007). East-Asian students' choice of Canadian graduate schools. *International Journal of Educational Advancement*, 7(4), 271-306.

- 44. Cheng, M. Y., Mahmood, A., & Yeap, P. F. (2013). Malaysia as a regional education hub: a demandside analysis. *Journal of Higher Education Policy and Management, vol.35, no.5,*, 523-536.
- 45. Cheng, Y. C., Cheung, A. C., & Yeun, T. W. (2011). Development of a regional education hub: the case of Hong Kong. *International Journal of Educational Management, Volume 25 Issue 5*, 474-493.
- 46. Cheung, M. F., Vijver, F. V., & Leong, F. T. (2011). Toward a New Approach to the Study of Personality in Culture. *American Psychologist* 66(7), 593-603.
- 47. Chia, A. (2011). A study of the factors influencing students' selection of a private educational institution in Singapore and the marketing implications for the institution. *SIBR*.
- 48. Childers, C., William, K., & Kemp, E. (2014). Emotions in the classroom: Examining environmental factors and student satisfaction. *Journal of Education for Business, vol.89, no.1*, 7-12.
- 49. Chiou, J. (2003). The impact of country of origin on pre-trial and post-trial product evaluations: The moderating effect of consumer expertise. *Psychological and Marketing*, *vol.20*, , 935-954.
- 50. Choudaha, R. (2013). Social Media in International Student Recruitment. *Aiea Occasional Paper*.
- 51. Choudaha, R. (2019). Study Abroad Trends of Indian Students to US, UK, Australia and Canada. *Dr Education: Global Higher Education Trends and Insights*.
- 52. Choudaha, R. (2019). Study Abroad Trends of Indian Students to USA, UK, Australia and Canada, Dr Education: Global Higher Education Trends and Insights, 29 January.
- 53. Choudaha, R., & Chang, L. (2012). Trends in International Student Mobility. Research Report–Research & Advisory Services–World.
- 54. Clarke, I., Clarke, T. B., Wright, N. D., & McMillen, R. M. (2009). Student Intercultural Proficiency From Study Abroad Programs. *Journal of Marketing Education* 31(2, 173-181.

- 55. Creswell, J. (2009). Research Design: Qualitative and Quantitative Approaches. Thousand Oaks, CA, USA: SAGE Publications Inc.
- 56. Crossman, J. E., & Clarke, M. (2010). International experience and graduate employability: Stakeholder perceptions on the connection. *Higher Education*, vol.59, 599-613.
- 57. Cubillo, J. M., Sanchez, J., & Cervino, J. (2006). International Students' Decision-Making Process. *International Journal of Educational Management*, vol.20, no.2, 101-115.
- 58. Dawes, P. L., & Brown, J. (2005). The composition of consideration and choice sets in undergraduate university choice: An exploratory study. *Journal of Marketing for Higher Education*, vol.14,No.2, 37-59.
- 59. De Jager, J., & Gbadamosi, G. (2013). Predicting students' satisfaction through service quality in higher education. *The International Journal of Educational Management, vol.11*, , 107-118.
- 60. De Wit, H 2008, The dynamics of international student circulation in a global context, Sense Publishers, Rotterdam.
- 61. Dodds, A. (2008). How does globalisation interact with higher education? The continuing lack of consensus. *Comparative Education*, vol. 44, no. 4, 505-517.
- 62. Dorigo, G., & Tobler, W. (1983). Push-pull migration law. Annals of the Association of American Geographers, vol.73, no.1, , 1-17.
- 63. Doyle, S., Gendall, P., Meyer, L. H., Hoek, J., Tait, C., McKenzie, L., et al. (2009). An investigation of factors associated with student participation in study abroad. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, 14(5), ,471-490.
- 64. Dreher, A., & Poutvaara, P. (2011). Foreign Students and Migration to the United States. World Development, vol. 39, no. 8, , 1294-1307.
- 65. Durnin, M. (2020). Covid-19 update: China survey results. London: British Council.
- 66. Dwyer, M. M. (2004). More is Better: The Impact of Study Abroad Program Duration. Frontiers The Interdisciplinary Journal of Study Abroad, 10, 151-162.

- 67. Edwards, R., & Edwards, J. (2001). Internationalisation of Education: A Business Perspective. *Australian Journal of Education* 45(1), 76-89.
- 68. Elías McAllister, D. (2012). Mexican American First-Generation Students. Perceptions of Siblings and Additional Factors Influencing Their College Choice Process. *PhD Thesis*. *University of Maryland*.
- 69. Elliott, C., & Soo, K. T. (2013). The international market for MBA qualifications: The relationship between tuition fees and applications. *Economics of Education Review, vol. 34*, 162.
- 70. Etİ İÇlİ, G., & Vural, B. B. (2010). Toplam Kalite Yönetimi ve Uygulamaları Çerçevesinde Kırklareli Üniversitesi Meslek Yüksekokulları Öğrenci Memnuniyeti Araştırması. *Marmara Üniversitesi İ.İ.B.F. Dergisi, 28(1)*: , 335-349.
- 71. Farnandez, j. (2010). An exploratory study of factors influencing the decision of students to study at University Sains Malaysia. *Kajian Malaysia*, vol.28, no.2, , 107-136.
- 72. Fazackerley, A. (2020, April 24). Loss of international student fees could decimate UK research. The Guardian.
- 73. Fumasoli, T. (2019). Learning from internationalisation scholarship in higher education: Commonalities, divergences and possible research directions for internationalisation in schools. In M. Yemini, C. Maxwell, & L. Engel (Eds.), beyond the established boundaries: The Machinery of School Internationalisation in Action (pp. 165–178). Routledge.
- 74. Gardner, P., Linda, G., & Inge, S. (2009). Translating Study Abroad Experiences for Workplace Competencies,. *Peer Review, 11 (4)*., 19+.
- 75. Gatfield, T., & Chen, C. (2006). Measuring student choice criteria using the thoery of planned behaviour: The case of Taiwan, Australia, UK and USA. *Journal of Marketing Higher Education*, vol.16, no.1, 77-95.

- 76. Gonza'lez, Caarlos; Mesanza, Ricardo; Mariel, Petr. (2010). The determinants of international student mobility flows:an empirical study on the Erasmus programme. *Higher Education* 62(4), 413-430.
- 77. Goundar, S. (2012). Cloud Computing: Understanding the Technology before Getting "Clouded". *In Recent Progress in Data Engineering and Internet Technology*, 217-222.
- 78. Govan, G. V., Patrick, S., & Yen, C. (2006). How high school students construct decision-making strategies for choosing colleges. *College and University*, 81(3), 19-29.
- 79. Gray, W. D., Schoelles, M. J., Bringsjord, S. A., Burrows, K., & Colder, B. (2003). Five powerful ideas for studying and transforming the intellligence analyst's task environment. Human Factors and Ergonomics Society., 1019-1023.
- 80. Grover, V. K. (2015). Research Approach: An Overview. *Golden Research Thought, 4(8)*, 1-8.
- 81. Hackett, G. (1981). Survey research methods. *Personnel and Guidance Journal, vol.59, no.9,* , 599.
- 82. Hackney, K., Boggs, D. J., & Borozan, A. (2012). An Empirical Study of Student Willingness to Study Abroad. *Journal of Teaching in International Business* 23(2), 123-144.
- 83. Hafazlolu, O., & Ozdemir, N. (2010). Undergraduates' expectations of foundation universities: recommendations for university administrators. . *Egitim ve Bilim Dergisi*, 35(155), 118-131.
- 84. Han, X & Appelbaum, R 2016, Stay or Go Home? International STEM Students in the United States are Up for Grabs after Graduation, Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation, Kansas City.
- 85. He, N., & Chen, R. J. (2010). College Students' Perceptions and Attitudes Toward the Selection of Study Abroad Programs. *International Journal of Hospitality & Tourism Administration* 11(4), 347-359.
- 86. Hearn, J. C. (1984). The relative role of academic, ascribed and socioeconomic characteristics in college destination. *Sociology of Education*, vol.57, 22-30.

- 87. Heller, D. E. (1997). Student price response in higher education: An update to Leslie and Brinkma. *Journal of Higher Education*, 68(6), , 624–659.
- 88. Hemsley-Brown, J., & Oplatka, I. (2006). Universities in a competitive global marketplace: A systematic review of the literature on higher education marketing. *International Journal of Public Sector Management*, vol. 19, no. 4, 316-338.
- 89. Hemsley-Brown, J., & Oplatka, I. (2015). University choice: what do we know, what don't we know and what do we still need to find out? *International Journal of Educational Management* 29(3), 254-274.
- 90. Herman, P. C. (2020). Online learning is not the future. Inside Higher Ed, June 10, 2020.
- 91. Hoepfl, M. C. (1997). Choosing qualitative research: A primer for technology education researchers. *Journal of Technology Education*, vol.9, no.1.
- 92. Hoyt, J. E., & Brown, A. B. (2003). Identifying college choice factors to successfully market your institution. . *College and University*, 78(4), , 3-10.
- 93. Hudzik, J 2011, Comprehensive internationalisation: From concept to action, executive summary, Washington, DC.'
- 94. Isherwood, G. B. (1991). College choice: A survey of English-speaking high school students in Quebec. *Canadian Journal of Education*, vol.16, no.1, , 72-81.
- 95. Ivy, J. (2001). Higher education institution image: a correspondence analysis approach. *The International Journal of Educational Management, Vol. 15 No. 6*, 276-82.
- 96. Jackson, G. A. (1982). Public efficiency and private choice in higher education. *Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis vol.4*, no.2, 237-247.
- 97. Javalgi, R. R., Cutler, B., & Winans, B. (2001). At your service! Does country of origin research apply to services, . *The Journal of Services Marketing, Vol. 15 Nos 6/7*, 565-82.
- 98. Johnston, T. C. (2010). Who and what influences choice of university? Student and university perceptions. *American Journal of Business Education, Vol. 3 No. 10*, 15-23.

- 99. Joseph, M., & Joseph, B. (1998). Identifying needs of potential students in tertiary education for strategy development. *Quality Assurance in Education*, vol.6, no.2, 90-96.
- 100. Joseph, M., & Joseph, B. (2000). Indonesian student's perceptions of choice criteria in the selection of a tertiary institution: Strategic implications. *The International Journal of Educational Management vol.14, no.1*, 40-44.
- 101. Joseph, M., Yakhou, M., & Stone, G. (2005). An educational institution's quest for service quality: Customers' perspective. *Quality Assurance Education*, vol.13, no.1, , 66-82.
- 102. Karahan, M. (2013). Yükseköğretim Kurumları Kalite Yeterliliklerinin Öğrenci Memnuniyeti Ve Sürdürülebilirlik Açısından İncelenmesi: İnönü Üniversitesi Malatya MYO Uygulaması. Dicle Üniversitesi İktisadi ve İdari Bilimler Fakültesi Dergisi, C:2 S:3 Yaz, 1-9.
- 103. Khairani, A. Z., & Razak, N. b. (2013). Assessing factors influencing students' choice of Malaysian public university: A Rasch model analysis'. *International Journal of Applied Psychology vol.3, no.1,*, 19-24.
- 104. Khosla, V. (2015). Around 3 lakh Indian students go abroad annually, 33% take property-backed loans. *The Economic Times*.
- 105. Kitsawad, K. (2013). An investigation of factors affecting high school student's choice of university in Thailand.
- 106. Knight, J 2004, 'Internationalization remodelled: Definition, approaches, and rationales', Journal of studies in international education, vol. 8, no. 1, pp. 5-31.
- 107. Knight, J 2008, Higher education in turmoil: the changing world of internationalization. Sense Publishers, Rotterdam.
- 108. Knight, J. (2003a). Internationalization: Developing An Institutional Self-Portrait.

 Observatory on borderless higher education. London, UK., 1-20.
- 109. Knight, J. (2004). New Rationales Driving Internationalization. *International Higher Education, Vol. 34 No. 2*, 3-5.
- 110. Knight, J. (2008). Higher Education in Turmoil: The Changing World of Internationalization. *The Netherlands: Sense Publishers*.

- 111. Knight, J., & de Wit, H. (1997). Internationalisation of Higher Education in Asia Pacific Countries. *European Association for International Education (EAIE)*, *Amsterdam*.
- 112. Koe, W. L., & Saring, S. N. (2012). Factors influencing the foreign undergraduates' Intention to study at graduate school of a public university. *Journal Kemanusiaan vol.19*, no.57.
- 113. Kurlaender, M. (2006). Choosing community college: Factors affecting Latino college choice. *New Directions for Community Colleges*, vol. 2006, no. 133, 7-16.
- 114. Kusumawati, A. (2013). A Qualitative Study of the Factors Influencing Student Choice: The Case of Public University in Indonesia. *Political Science*.
- 115. Laggett, K. (2011). Encouraging STEM Students to Study Abroad. *International Educator* (1059-4221), 20, 4 2011), 44-47.
- 116. Lakomski, G., & Ever, C. (2010). Passionate rationalism: the role of emotion in decision making. *Journal of Educational Administration*, vol.48, no.4, 438-450.
- 117. Lee, C.-F. (2014). An Investigation of Factors Determining the Study Abroad Destination Choice: A Case Study of Taiwan. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, vol. 18, no. 4, 362-81.
- 118. Lee, E. S. (1996). A theory of migration. *Demography*, vol. 3, 47-57.
- 119. Lee, S. W. (2017). Circulating East to East: Understanding the Push-Pull Factors of Chinese Students Studying in Korea. *Journal of studies in international education,vol. 21, no.* 2, , 190;170;-190.
- 120. Lewis, B. R., & Mitchell, V. W. (1990). Defining and measuring the quality of customer service. *Marketing intelligence & planning, vol.8, no.6,*, 11-17.
- 121. Li, M., & Bray, M. (2007). Cross-border flows of students for higher education:

 Push-pull factors and motivations of mainland Chinese students in Hong Kong and Macau.

 Higher Education (2007) 53, 791–818.
- 122. Lindong, L. A. (2007). A cross-case study of the competitive advantage of private higher educational institutions in Kuching, Sarawak. . Unpublished doctoral dissertation, Universiti Sains, Gelugor, Penang, Malaysia. Accessed through

- <http://eprints.usm.my/7771/1/A_CROSSCASE_STUDY_OF_THE_COMPETITIVE_ADVAN

 TAGE_OF_PRIVATE_HIGHER_EDUCATIONAL_INSTITUTIONS_IN

 KUCHING, SARAWAK.pdf> .
- 123. Litten, L. H., & Brodigan, D. L. (1982). On being heard in a noisy world: Matching messages and media in college marketing. *College and University*. *57(3)*, 242-264.
- 124. Liu, A., Rhoads, R. A., & Wang, Y. (2007). Chinese University Students' Views on Globalization: Exploring Conceptions of Citizenship. Exploring Conceptions of Citizenship Vol. 6, No.1, 95-125.
- 125. Liu, D., & Wang, J. (2008). The determinants of international student mobility: An empirical study on U.S. Data. *Economics Master Thesis 15 higher education credits*.
- 126. Llewellyn-Smith, C., & McCabe, S. E. (2008). What is the attraction for exchange students: The host destination or host university? Empirical evidence from a study of an Australian university. *International Journal of Tourism Research*, vol. 10, no. 6, 593-607.
- 127. Lozano, J. E. (2008). Exploring students' decisions regarding studying abroad: A study of private university students in south Texas.
- 128. Lub, A. (2002). Europeanisation, internationalisation and globalisation in higher education. *Center for Higher Education Policy Studies (CHEPS)*.
- 129. M, Hormoz; U, Fahri; G, Kenan. (2014). Study Abroad Decisions: Determinants and Consequences. *Journal of Higher Education Theory & Practice V14,1*, 69-80.
- 130. Magnusson, J.-L. (2000). Examining Higher Education and Citizenship in a Global Context of Neoliberal Restructuring. *Canadian Ethnic Studies/Etudes ethniques au Canada,* 32(1), 72-88.
- 131. Marginson, S. (2020). Global HE as we know it has forever changed. Times Higher Education, 26 March 2020.
- 132. Maringe, F. (2006). University and course choice: Implications for positioning, recruitment and marketing. *International Journal of Educational Management*, Vol.20(6), 466-479.

- 133. Maringe, F., & Carter, S. (2007). International students' motivations for studying in UK HE. *International Journal of Education Management*, vol.21, no.6, 459-475.
- 134. Maringe, F., & Carter, S. (2007). International students' motivations for studying in UK HE: Insights into the choice and decision making of African students. *International Journal of Education Management*, 21(6), 459-475.
- 135. Marketing Research, An Applied Orientation 20116th edition, Pearson, India
- 136. Martel, M. (2020). COVID-19 effects on U.S. higher education campus: From emergency response to planning for future student mobility. Washington, DC: Institute of International Education.
- 137. Martinez, L. (2011). Study Abroad Advantage. *Diverse Issues in Higher Education*, 28 (19), 25-35.
- 138. Matthews, P. R., Hameister, B. G., & Hosley, N. S. (1998). Attitudes of college students toward study abroad: Implications for disability service providers. *Journal of Postsecondary Education and Disability*, 13(2), 67-77.
- 139. Mazzarol, T. (1998). Critical success factors for international education marketing.

 International Journal of Educational Management, 163-75.
- 140. Mazzarol, T., Kemp, S., & Savery, L. (1997). International Students Who Choose Not to Study in Australia: An Examination of Taiwan and Indonesia. *Australian International Education Foundation, Canberrra*.
- 141. Mazzarol, T., Soutar, G. N., & Thein, V. (2000). "Critical Success Factors in the Marketing of an Education Institution - A Comparison of Institutional and Student Perspectives. *Journal of Marketing for Higher Education 10(2)*, 39-57.
- 142. Mazzarol, T; Soutar, G N. (1999). Sustainable competitive advantage for educational institutions: A suggested model. *International Journal of Educational Management*, vol.13, no.6, , 287–300.
- 143. Mazzarol, T; Soutar, G. (2002). "Push-pull" factors influencing international student destination choice. *International Journal of Educational Management 16*, 82–90.

- 144. Mazzarol, Tim. (2001). "Push-Pull Factors Influencing International Student Destination Choice. Centre for Entrepreneurial Management and Innovation.
- 145. McCall, M., Trombetta, J., & Nattress, K. (2002). Limited Underage Alcohol Purchases: An Application of the Consumer Decision Model. *Journal of Business and Psychology, Vol. 17, No. 1*, 19-29.
- 146. McMahon, M. (1992). Higher education in a world market: An historical look at the global context of international study. *Higher Education*, vol.24, no.4, , 465-482.
- 147. Moghaddam, J. M., Ali, P., & Jia, W. (2009). The Effect of Personality Traits on the Perceived Effectiveness of Summer Study Abroad Programs: An Empirical Study in the United States. *International Journal of Management*, 26 (3), ,426-435.
- 148. Mok, K. (2000). Reflecting globalization effects on local policy: higher education reform in Taiwan. *Journal of Education Policy, Vol. 15 No. 6*, , 637-660.
- 149. Mok, K. H. (2020). "Will Chinese students want to study abroad post-COVID-19?" University Worldnews, 4 July 2020.
- 150. Moogan, Y J; Baron, S; Harris, K. (1999). Decision-making behaviour of potential higher education students. *Higher education Quarterly, vol.53, no.3*, 211-228.
- 151. Moogan, Y. J. (2011). Can a higher education institution's marketing strategy improve the student institution match? *International Journal of Education Management,* vol.25, no.6, , 570-589.
- 152. Moogan, Y. J., & Baron, S. (2003). An analysis of student characteristics within the student decision making process. *Journal of Further and Higher Education*, vol.27, no.3, 271-287.
- 153. Moogan, Y. J., Baron, S., & Bainbridge, S. (2001). Timings and trade-offs in the marketing of higher education courses: A conjoint approach. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning*, vol.29, no.3, 179-187.

- 154. Morrish, S., & Lee, C. (2011). Country of origin as a source of sustainable competitive advantage: The case for international higher education institutions in New Zealand. *Journal of Strategic Marketing*, 19(6), , 517 529.
- 155. Mpinganjira, M. (2009). Comparative analysis of factors influencing the decision to study abroad. *African journal of business management 3(8)*, 358-365.
- 156. Mpinganjira, M. (2009). Comparative analysis of factors influencing the decision to study abroad. *African Journal of Business Management Vol. 3 (8)*, 358-365.
- 157. Nagashima, A. (1970). A comparison of Japanese and US attitudes toward foreign products. *Journal of Marketing*, *34(1)*, 68-74.
- 158. Ng, S. W., & Tang, S. Y. (2008). The challenges and strategies of internationalizing Hong Kong's higher education in a globalized world. *International Journal of Educational Reform*, 17(3), , 251–269.
- 159. Nilsson, P. A., & universitet, U. (2015). Expectations and experiences of inbound students: Perspectives from Sweden. *Journal of International Students, vol. 5, no. 2*, 161-174.
- 160. Nilsson-Witell, L., & Anders, F. (2005). Dynamics of service attributes: a test of Kano-s theory of attractive quality. *International Journal of Service Industry Management,* Vol 16 No 2, , 152-168.
- 161. Norris, E., & Gillespie, J. (2009). How Study Abroad Shapes Global Careers: Evidence From the United States. *Journal of Studies in International Education, vol. 13, no.* 3, , 382-397.
- 162. Obermeit, K. (2012). Students' choice of universities in Germany: Structure, factors, and information sources used. *Journal of Marketing for Higher Education*, 22(2), , 206-230.
- 163. O'Brien, A., Webb, P., Page, S., & Proctor, T. (2007). A study into the factors influencing the choice making process of Indian students when selecting an international university for graduate studies using Grounded Theory.

- 164. Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development 2008, International Migration Outlook 2008, 2008 edition, OECD Publishing, Paris.
- 165. Padlee, S. F., Kamaruddin, A. R., & Baharun, R. (2010). International students' choice behavior for higher education at Malaysia private universities. *International Journal of Marketing Studies*, vol.2,no.2.
- 166. Paulsen, M. B., & St. John, E. P. (2002). Social class and college costs: Examining the financial nexus between college choice and persistence. *The Journal of Higher Education,* vol.73, no. 2, , 189–236.
- 167. Peng, Z., Lawley, M., & Perry, C. (2000). Modelling and testing effects of country, corporate and brand images on consumers' product evaluation and purchase intention. *paper presented at the ANZMAC 2000 Visionary Marketing for the 21st Century: Facing the Challenge Conference*.
- 168. Perna, L. W. (2006). Studying College Choice: A Proposed Conceptual Model. Higher Education: Handbook of theory and research, vol.XXI, J.C. Smart (ed), , 91-157.
- 169. Peterson, R. A., & Jolibert, A. J. (1995). A meta analysis of country of origin effects. *Journal of International Business Studies, Vol. 26 No. 4*, 883-900.
- 170. Petruzzellis, L., & Romanazzi, S. (2010). Educational value: how students choose university: Evidence from an Italian university. *International Journal of Educational Management*, vol. 24, no. 2, 139-158.
- 171. Phang, S. L. (2013). Factors influencing international students' study destination decision abroad. *Master thesis, University of Gothenburg, Sweden*.
- 172. Phillimore, J., Koshy, & Koshy, P. (2013). "Commonwealth infrastructure funding for Australian universities: 2004-2011. *Australian Universities' Review, The, vol. 55, no. 2*, 99-104.
- 173. Pimpa, N. (2002). Marketing of international education: The influence of normative referents on Thai students' choices of international education. *doctoral thesis, Monash University*.

- 174. Pimpa, N. (2002b). "The Influence of Family, Peers, and Education Agents on Thai Students' Choices of International Education. Paper presented at the New times new approaches: Australian Education International Conference, Hobart, Tasmania.
- 175. Pimpa, N. (2003). The influence of family on Thai students' choices of international education. *International Journal of Educational Management*, 17(5), 211-219.
- 176. Pimpa, N. (2005). A Family Affair: The Effect of Family on Thai Students' Choices of International Education", *Higher Education, Vol. 49, No. 4*, 431-448.
- 177. Pimpa, N;. (2004). The relationship between Thai students' choices of international education and their families. *International Education Journal*, vol.5, no.3.
- 178. Portes, A., & Borocz, J. (1989). Contemporary immigration: Theoretical perspectives on its determinants and modes of incorporation. *International Migration Review, Special Silver Anniversary Issue: International Migration an Assessment for the 90's (Autumn, 1989)', vol.23,no.3*.
- 179. Powell, C.L. (2001). Statement on International Education Week 2001. US Government Archive.
- 180. Presley, A., Martinez, D. D., & Zhang, L. (2010). A Study of Business Student Choice to Study Abroad: A Test of the Theory of Planned Behavior. *Journal of Teaching in International Business* 21(4), 227-247.
- 181. Purr, M. (2010). Hochschulwahl bei Wirtschaftswissenschaftlern: Warum BWL-Studenten eine bestimmte Hochschule wählen [University choice of economics students: Why students of business administration choose a specific university]. Reihe Sozialwissenschaften. Vol. 36. Marburg: Tectum Verlag.
- 182. Pyvis, D., & Chapman, A. (2007). Why university students choose an international education: A case study in Malaysia. *International Journal of Educational Development* 27(2), 235-246.

- 183. QS. (2019). the impact of the Coronavirus on prospective international students. Retrieved fromhttps://www.qs.com/portfolio-items/the-impact-of-the-coronavirus-on-prospective-international-students/
- 184. Reisberg, L. (2004). Where did all the international students go? *International Higher Education, Vol* 37, 11-13.
- 185. Research Methodology: Methods and Techniques (3rd edition)2014New Delhi:New Age International (P) Ltd.
- 186. Rhoads, R. A., & Rhoades, G. (2005). Graduate employee unionization as symbol of and challenge to the corporatization of U.S. Research universities. *The Journal of Higher Education*, vol. 76, no. 3, 243-275.
- 187. Robinson, C. (2009). Kano on Customers. *The Journal for Quality and Participation,*Vol 32 No 2, 23.
- 188. Robison, J. E. (2007). Ethical Considerations in the Use of Commercial Agents in International Student Recruitment. *Ph.D. Thesis, University of Missouri-Columbia*.
- 189. Roth, S. M., & Romeo, B. J. (1992). Matching product category and country image perceptions: a framework for managing country-of-origin effects. *Journal of International Business Studies, Third Quarter*, 480.
- 190. Ruby, A. (2005). Reshaping the University in an Era of Globalization. *Phi Delta Kappan, Vol. 87 No. 3*, 233-236.
- 191. Rumbley, L. E., Altbach, P. G., & Reisberg, L. (2012). Internationalization within the higher education context. *Political Science*.
- 192. Russell, M. (2005). Marketing education a review of service quality perceptions among international students. *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management*, Vol 17 No 1, 65-77.
- 193. Safakli, O., & Ihemeje, O. (2015). Motivation of Students Studying Abroad: Case of Foreign Students in European University of Lefke (Eul). *International Journal of Academic Research in Progressive Education and Development, Oct 2015, Vol. 4, No. 4*, 2226-6348.

- 194. Salisbury, M. H., Paulsen, M. B., & Pascarella, E. T. (2010). To See the World or Stay at Home: Applying an Integrated Student Choice Model to Explore the Gender Gap in the Intent to Study Abroad. . *Research in Higher Education*, *51*, 615-640.
- 195. Salisbury, M. H., Umbach, P. D., Paulsen, M. B., & Pascarella, E. (2009). Going Global: Understanding the Choice Process of the Intent to Study Abroad. *Research in Higher Education* 50(2), 119-143.
- 196. Sam, D. L. (2001). Satisfaction with life among international students. *Social Indicator Research*, vol.53, doi http://dx.doi.org/10.1023/A:1007108614571, 315-337.
- 197. Samiee, S. (1994). Customer evaluation of products in a global market. *Journal of International Business Studies, Third Quarter*.
- 198. Sánchez, C. M., Fornerino, M., & Zhang, M. (2006). Motivations and the intent to study abroad among U.S., French, and Chinese students. *Journal of Teaching in International Business*, 18(1), 27-52.
- 199. Schmidt, R. (2002). A student's initial perception of value when selecting a college: an application of value added. *Quality Assurance in Education, Vol. 10, No 1*, 37-39.
- 200. Scott, P 2006, 'The Global Dimension: Internationalising Higher Education', in B Kehm & H de Wit (eds.), Internationalisation in Higher Education: European Responses to the Global Perspective, European Association for International Education / EAIR The European Higher Education Research Society, Amsterdam.
- 201. Scott, P. (2000). Globalisation and Higher Education: Challenges for the 21st Century. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, v4 n1, 3-10.
- 202. Sewell, W. H., Hauser, R. M., & C, W. W. (1986). Sex, schooling and occupational status. *American Journal of Sociology*, vol.86, 551-583.
- 203. Shaguri; Ray, Obadya;. (2013). Higher Education in India Access, Equity, Quality, EAN world Congress Scholar.

- 204. Shanka, T., Quintal, V., & Taylor, R. (2005). Factors influencing international students' choice of an education destination a correspondence analysis. *Journal of Marketing for Higher Education*, vol.15, no. 2, 31-46.
- 205. Shanka', T., Ali-Knight, J., & Pope, J. (2002). Intrastate travel experiences of international students and their perceptions of Western Australia as a tourist destination.

 Tourism & Hospitality Research, vol.3, no. 3, ,245-56.
- 206. Sheth, J. (1979). The surpluses and shortages in consumer behaviour theory and research. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Service, Vol. 7 No 4*, 414-427.
- 207. Shuai, Z., & Lang, D. (2017). Factors That Influence the International Students' Decisions to Study in Malaysia. *Management Science and Engineering, Vol. 11, No. 2*, 35-38.
- 208. Sidin, S. M., Hussin, S. R., & Soon, T. H. (2003). An Exploratory Study of Factors Influencing the College Choice Decision of Undergraduate Students in Malaysia . *Asia Pacific Management Review* 8(3), 259-280.
- 209. Simon, H. A. (1947). Administrative behavior; a study of decision-making processes in administrative organization. Macmillan Inc.
- 210. Singh, J. K., Schapper, J., & Jack, G. (2014). The importance of place for international students' choice of university: a case study at a Malaysian university. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, vol.15, no.5, ,463-474.
- 211. Sojkin, B., Bartkowiak, P., & Skuza, A. (2012). Determinants of higher education choices and students satisfaction: the case of Poland. *Higher Education, Vol. 63 No. 5*, 565-581.
- 212. Soutar, G. N., & Turner, J. P. (2002). Students' preferences for university: a conjoint analysis. *International Journal of Educational Management* 16(1), 40-45.
- 213. Soutar, G. N., & Turner, J. P. (2006). "Students' preferences for university: a conjoint analysis. *International Journal of Educational Management, vol. 16, no. 1,*, 40-45.
- 214. Srikatanyoo, N., & Gnoth, J. (2002). Country image and international tertiary education. *Journal of Brand Management, Vol. 10 No. 2*, , 139 46.

- 215. Stroud, A. H. (2010). Who plans (not) to study abroad? An examination of U.S. student intent. *Journal of Studies in International Education 14 (5)*, 491–507.
- 216. Teichler, U. (2004a). The Changing Debate on Internationalisation of Higher Education. *Higher Education*, 48, 5-26.
- 217. Tesar, M. (2020). Towards a post-Covid-19 "New Normality?" Physical and social distancing, the move to online and higher education. Policy Future in Education, 18(5), 556-559.
- 218. Trilokekar, R. D., & Kizilbash, Z. (2013). IMAGINE: Canada as a leader in international education. How can Canada benefit from the Australian experience? . *Canadian Journal of Higher Education*, 43, 1-26.
- 219. Trilokekar, R. D., & Kizilbash, Z. (2013). IMAGINE: Canada as a leader in international education. How can Canada benefit from the Australian experience? *The Canadian Journal of Higher Education, vol. 43, no. 2,* , 1.
- 220. Vagias, & Wade, M. (2006). Likert-type scale response anchors. Clemson International Institute for Tourism & Research Development,. Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism Management. Clemson University.
- 221. Varghese N.V. (2014), Globalization and higher education: Changing trends in cross border education. Analytical Reports in International Education, Vol. 5. No. 1, December 2013, pp. 7-20
- 222. Varghese N.V. (2020), Internationalisation of Higher Education Global Trends and Indian Initiatives. Essay No. 10. July 17, 2020.
- 223. Veloutsou, C., Lewis, J. W., & Paton, R. A. (2004). University selection: information requirements and importance. *International Journal of Educational Management*, 18(3), , 160–171.

- 224. Veloutsou, C., Paton, R. A., & Lewis, J. (2005). Consultation and reliability of information sources pertaining to university selection. Some questions answered? *International Journal of Education Management*, vol.19, no.4, 279-291.
- 225. Veloutsou, C., Paton, R. A., & Lewis, J. (2005). Consultation and reliability of information sources pertaining to university selection: Some questions answered? pertaining to university selection: Some questions answered? vol.19, no.4, 279-291.
- 226. Vlk, A. (2006). Higher Education and GATS: Regulatory Consequences and Stakeholders Responses. . *CHEPS/Universiteit Twente*.
- 227. Vrontis, D., Thrassou, A., & Melanthiou, Y. (2007). A contemporary higher education student-choice model for developed countries. *Journal of Business Research*, vol.60, no.9, 979-989.
- 228. Vught, F. V. (2004). Internationalisation and Globalisation in European Higher Education. *Heads of University Management and Administration Network in Europe*.
- 229. Wadim S., Veronica G., Elena R., and Ekaterina R. (2021) Relationship between globalization and internationalization of higher education. E3S Web of Conferences 301, 03006 (2021) REC-2021.
- 230. Wall, M., Liefeld, J. P., & Heslop, L. A. (1991). Impact of country of origin cues on consumer judgements in multi cue situations: a covariance analysis. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science, Vol. 19 No. 2*, 105-13.
- 231. Wang, Z. (2007). Key factors that influence recruiting young Chinese. *International Education Journal*, 37-48.
- 232. Wende, M. V. (2007). nternationalization of Higher Education in the OECD Countries: Challenges and Opportunities for the Coming Decade. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, Vol. 11 No. 3/4, 274-289.
- 233. Whitehead, J. M., Raffan, J., & Deaney, R. (2006). University choice: What influences decisions of academically successful post-16 students? *Higher Education Quarterly*, vol.60, no.1, 4-26.

- 234. Wilkins, S., & Epps, A. (2011). Student evaluation web sites as potential sources of consumer information in the United Arab Emirates. *International Journal of Educational Management*, vol.25, , 410-422.
- 235. Wilkins, S., Balakrishnan, M. S., & Huisman, J. (2012). Student choice in higher education: Motivations for choosing to study at an international branch campus. *Journal of Studies in International Education vol.16*, no.5, , 413–433.
- 236. Wilkins, S., Shams, F., & Huisman, J. (2013). The decision-making and changing behavioural dynamics of potential higher education students: the impacts of increasing tuition fees in England. *Educational Studies*, vol. 39, no. 2, 125-141.
- Willich, J., Buck, D., Heine, C., & Sommer, D. (2011). Studienanfänger im Wintersemester 2009/10: Wege zum Studium, Studien- und Hochschulwahl, Situation bei Studienbeginn. [First-year students in the winter semester 2009/10: Avenues to study, choice of field of study and university, situation when starting to study]. Hannover: HIS Hochschul Informations-System GmbH.
- 238. Wintre, M., Kandasamy, A., Chavoshi, S., & Wright, L. (2015). Are international undergraduate students emerging adults? Motivations for studying abroad. *Emerging Adulthood* 2015, vol.3, no.4, 255-264.
- 239. Wright, N. D., & Clarke, I. (2010). Preparing Marketing Students for a Global and Multicultural Work Environment: The Value of a Semester-Long Study Abroad Program.

 *Marketing Education Review, 20 (2), 149-161.
- 240. Wu, H., Garza, E., & Guzman, N. (2015). International Student's Challenge and Adjustment to College. *Education Research International*, 1-9.
- 241. Wu, Q. (2014). Motivations and decision-making processes of Mainland Chinese students forundertaking master's programs abroad. *Journal of Studies in International Education*, vol.18, no.5, , 426-444.

- 242. Xiong, W., Mok, K. H., & Jiang, J. (2020). Hong Kong university students' online learning experiences under the Covid-19 pandemic. Oxford, UK: Higher Education Policy Institute.
- 243. Yamamoto, G. T. (2006). University evaluation-selection: A Turkish Case.

 International Journal of Educational Management, vol. 20, no. 7, 559-569.
- 244. Yang, M. (2007). What attracts mainland Chinese students to Australian higher education. *Studies in Learning, Evaluation Innovation and Development, Vol. 4, no.2*, 1-12.
- 245. Yang, R. (2002). University internationalisation: its meanings, rationales and implications. *Intercultural Education, Vol. 13 No. 1*, , 81-95.
- 246. Yang, R. (2003). Globalisation and Higher Education Development: A Critical Analysis. *International Review of Education, Vol. 49 No. 3-4*, 269-291.
- Zajda, JL & Rust VD 2016, 'Current Research Trends in Globalisation and Neo-liberalism inHigher Education', in JL Zajda & VD Rust (eds.), Globalisation and Higher EducationReforms. Globalisation, Comparative Education and Policy Research, Springer, pp. 1-19.
- 248. Zhang, Y. (2011). The use of agents in applying to the US higher education experience of Chinese undergraduate students. *doctoral thesis, Iowa State University*.
- 249. Zheng, P. (2014). Antecedents to international student inflows to UK higher education: A comparative analysis. *Journal of Business Research*, vol.67, , 136-143.

Ph.D Thesis

1. Americanos, A. (2011). Factors influencing international students' decisions in choosing a Cyprus Higher Education Institution: Implications for recruitment and marketing, Middlesex University

- 2. Buddhichiwin2013The Decision making and experiences of Thai postgraduate students in the UK: Implications for marketing strategies*Doctoral thesis, University of Exeter*
- 3. Chloe, T.W. (2019). Investigating Key Factors Influencing International Students'

 Choice of Private Higher Education Institutions (HEIs) in Malaysia, Victoria

 University Business School.
- 4. Kasravi, J. (2009). Factors Influencing the Decision to Study Abroad for Students of Color: Moving Beyond the Barriers, University Of Minnesota.
- 5. Muschter, S. (2015). European Students' Decision Making Processes When Choosing to Study in Australia And Their Travel Behaviour During Their Stay, Southern Cross University.
- 6. Radford, A. W. (2009). Where do they go? How gender, race and social class shape high school valedictorians' paths to their undergraduate institutions. *doctoral thesis, Princeton University, New*.
- 7. Urbanski, R. A. (2000). Factors influencing students college choice at a Northeatern Mennesota Tribal College. *doctoral thesis, University of Minnesota, Minnesota*.

Reports

- 1. Ballantine, J., & Spade, J. (2007). Schools and Society: A Sociological Approach to Education, Third Edition. SAGE Publications (CA).
- 2. British council. (2014). Understanding India- The Future of Higher Education and Opportunities.
- 3. British Council. (2010). Education UK Partnership: Top level analysis of 2008/2009 HESA data.
- 4. Duan, J. P. (1997). The influence of various factors on international students in selecting universities: A South Australia study of Chinese students from Hong Kong and Malaysia.

 Australia: doctoral thesis, University of South Australia, Adelaide, Australia.

- Farrugia, C. A., Bhandari, R., Chow, P., & Education, I. o. (2013). Open doors 2013: Report on international educational exchange. New York: New York: Institute of International Education.
- 6. Gueruez, K. (2008). Higher education and international student mobility in the global knowledge economy. New york, US: State University of New York Press.
- 7. Henard, F. (2008). Learning our Lesson: Review of Quality teaching in Higher Education.
- 8. Institute of International Education, I. (2016). *Open door Report.* INSTITUTE OF INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION.
- 9. Institute of International Education, I. (2014). *The IIE Open Doors Report*. Institute of International Education, Inc.
- Lee, A. K. (2015). Revealing the unspoken: Malaysian students' intrinsic influences in selecting the UK for higher education migration. doctoral thesis, University of Hertfordshire.
- 11. Marginson, S., & der Wende, M. (2007). *Globalisation and Higher Education*.

 Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) Education Working Papers, No. 8, OECD Publishing [online].
- 12. Masani, Z. (2008). India still Asia's reluctant tiger. BBC Radio 4.
- 13. Maslen, G. (2012). Worldwide student numbers forecast to double by 2025. University World News.
- 14. Newsweek. (2011). Special Report: The Education Race.
- OECD. (2013). Education at a Glance 2013: OECD Indicators, OECD. Paris, France:
 Centre for Educational Research and Innovation.
- 16. OECD. (2016). Education at a Glance 2016: OECD Indicators. https://doi.org/10.1787/eag-2016-en.
- 17. OECD. (2008). *Education at a Glance: OECD INDICATORS*. www.oecd.org/publishing/corrigenda.
- 18. Open Door Fact Sheet (2017 to 2021).

- Roslyn Kunin & Associates, I. (2012). Economic impact of international education in Canada – An update. Foreign Affairs and International Trade Canada.
- 20. Science and Technology Education; (2009). Press Information Bureau.
- 21. UKCOSA. (2006). The experience of international students in UK further education colleges. Report of the UKCOSA Survey, The Council for International Education.
 1989Understanding student college choiceNew YorkAgathon Press, New York
- 22. UNESCO. (2009). Global education digest 2009: comparing education statistics across the world. Paris, France: UNESCO Institute for Statistics.
- 23. United Minds. (2007). Free-movers i Sverige 2007 –En undersökning om valet av Sverige som studieland för Svenska Institutet och Högskoleverket.
- 24. Ward, C., & Masgoret, A. (2004). The experiences of international students in New Zealand: report the result of the national survey. New Zealand: Ministry of Education.

Website

- Edupass. (2013). Sources of Financial Aid. Retrieved from http://www.edupass.org/finaid/sources.phtml.
- Indian Students Contributed USD 7.6 Billion To USA: Open Doors Report 2020, https://opendoorsdata.org/fast_facts/fast-facts-2021/
- 3. Internation Finance Corporation (IFC). (2015, February). *IFC Publication*. Retrieved from IFC: www.ifc.org/education
- International Education Advisory Council. (2012). Discussion Paper for the Development of an International Education Strategy for Australia. Retrieved from https://aei.gov.au/IEAC2/Consultation%28IEAC%29/Documents/InternationalEducat
- 5. Jharkhand Literacy2016
- 6. Jharkhand Literacy Rate Census 2011

- 7. Kusumawati, A., Yanamandram, V. K., & Perera, N. (n.d.). *Exploring student choice criteria* for selecting an Indonesian public university: A preliminary finding. Retrieved from Retrieved from http://ro.uow.edu.au/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1035&context=chsd.
- 8. Mapping COVID-19's impact on global student mobility.

https://monitor.icef.com/2021/09/mapping-covid-19s-impact-on-global-student-mobility/

9. Minitry of Education.

https://www.mea.gov.in/loksabha.htm?dtl/33702/QUESTION+NO4709+STUDENTS +GOING+ABROAD

- 10. Ministry of Human Resource Development, Government of India. (2020). New Education Policy. https://www.mhrd.gov.in/nep-new
- 11. Mitchell, Nic. (2013, 09 14). Is Sweden recovering from the international student crash?
 Retrieved from http://DelaCourCommunications.com
- 12. Nexus, N. (2013, July). *Higher Education Opportunities in India*. Retrieved from www.nexusnovus.com: www.nexusnovus.com
- 13. Open Door Report 2018https://www.iie.org/en/Research-and-Insights/Open-Doors
- 14. QS I-GAUGE. (2020). Indian Students' Mobility Report 2020: Impact of Covid-19 on higher education choices.

Retrieved, fromhttps://www.igauge.in/news/2020/5/mobility-report-2020

15. The Countries With The Most Students Studying Abroad,

https://www.statista.com/chart/3624/the-countries-with-the-most-students-studying-abroad/

- 16. UIS (2018). Global Education Digest: Comparing Education Statistics across the World. Montreal: UIS.
- 17. http://uis.unesco.org/en/uis-student-flow#slideoutmenu